

Agenda Item 2.1.1

CWM TAF MORGANNWG UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

 ‘CONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PEOPLE & CULTURE COMMITTEE HELD ON 9 AUGUST 2023, HELD AT THE HWB, ROYAL GLAMORGAN HOSPITAL
PRESENT
Dilys Jouvenat 
-
Independent Member (Chair)

Lynda Thomas 
-
Independent Member (via Teams)
Nicola Milligan 
-
Independent Member

IN ATTENDANCE 

Hywel Daniel 
-
Executive Director for People 

Greg Padmore
-
Deputy Chief Executive/Executive Director 

Dix



of Nursing,Midwifery & Patient Care 
Richard Hughes
-
Deputy Director of Nursing, Midwifery & 

Patient Care (in-part)
Helen Watkins 
- 
Deputy Director for People

Marc Penny

-
Director of Improvement & Innovation
Julie Denley
-
Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Primary 

Care, Mental Health & Learning Disabilities
Michelle Hurley
-
Assistant Director of Organisational 

Tyers


-
Development and Wellbeing 

Natalie Price 
-
Assistant Director, Strategic Workforce 
Planning
Sallie Davies 
-
Deputy Medical Director 
Karen Wright 
-
Assistant Director of Policy, Governance and 

Compliance (in-part)
Becky Gammon 
-
Assistant Director of Nursing and Peoples 
Experience
Tom Powell 
-
Head of Innovation / RIC Lead (in-part)

Ben Screen

-
Welsh Language Services Manager (in-part)
Hannah Wilton
-
Chief Pharmacist (in-part)
Rhian Carta

-
Head of Pharmacy Prince Charles Hospital 




(in-part)
Simon Blackburn 
-
Senior Communications Officer (in-part)
Sara Utley

-
Audit Wales (Observing via Teams)
Paul Dalton 
-
Internal Audit (Observing Observing via 





Teams) 

Cally Hamblyn
- 
Assistant Director of Governance & Risk 
Nerys Heightley
- 
Business Support People Services 
Kathrine Davies 
-
Corporate Governance Manager 




(Secretariat)
PART 1. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1.1.0 
Welcome and Introductions 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting including:

· Hannah Wilton, Chief Pharmacist

· Rhian Carta, Head of Pharmacy at Prince Charles Hospital who were in attendance for Agenda Item 3.2 Pharmacy Collective Leadership. 

· Ben Screen, Welsh Language Services Manager, in attendance for Agenda Item 5.1.1 Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2022-23

· Simon Blackburn, Senior Communications Advisor, in attendance for Agenda item 6.4 Staff Recognition. 

· Sarah Utley, Audit Wales will be observing the meeting via Teams. 

· Paul Dalton, Internal Audit will be observing the meeting via Teams.   
1.2.0
Apologies for Absence 
Apologies were received from: 
· Sarah James, Deputy Chief Operating Officer
· Geraint Hopkins, Independent Member 

1.3.0
Declarations of Interest 


There were none declared. 
PART 2. CONSENT AGENDA 

2.1 FOR APPROVAL

2.1.1
‘Unconfirmed’ Minutes of the Meeting held on the 10th May 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 
2.1.2
Draft Committee Annual Report 2022-23 
Resolution: The Annual Report was ENDORSED FOR BOARD APPROVAL.
2.2
POLICIES FOR APPROVAL
2.2.1
Overtime and Additional Hours

Alcohol and Substance Misuse
Resolution: The above Policies were APPROVED:
2.2.2
Employee Wellbeing Policy 
Resolution: The Employee Wellbeing Policy was APPROVED. 
2.3 ITEMS FOR NOTING
2.3.1
Action Log 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Action Log.  

3.0 MAIN AGENDA

3.1.0
Matters Arising Not Otherwise Contained Within the Action 

Log
There were none.
3.2.0
SPOTLIGHT: Pharmacy Collective Leadership Presentation
H. Wilton and R. Carta provided a presentation to the Committee. 

N. Milligan advised that this was excellent work and she was fully supportive of compassionate and collective leadership and if they wanted to engage with staff that was the only way to promote change.  She referred to psychological safety and noted that there was further work to do around this.

H. Daniel commented that it was good to see the improvements being made in shifting cultures which had huge scalability opportunities. 

L. Thomas echoed the comments made by N. Milligan and H. Daniel, and added that she loved the energy that they had both portrayed during the presentation. She queried what they could do with the workforce to make some slight changes to bring in some fresh talent into the team which might be helpful. 

H. Wilton, in response advised that it was a challenging mind-set and one that required a lot of energy.  She added that one of the things they were doing was moving people across the different sites which was helping to bring the teams together, working collectively across all sites. 

M. Penny referred to the psychological safety element session where there seemed to be lots of positive things coming out of that. He added that they would look at how they would use this for continuous improvement and the development of those larger projects and advised that he would take away and work with M. Hurley-Tyers and colleagues on this.

N. Milligan commented that collective leadership helped staff to feel comfortable and that this should be considered for developing future leaders. 
H Daniel referred to the sessions that they were holding and advised that it would be good if he could attend one of these.  He advised that his recent visit to the Pharmacy Department had been a really positive experience and he commended the staff for their positivity and for their work. He added that what had really stood out was the progression of staff in that department and to consider that this would be good work to share with the Leadership Forum. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Presentation.  
4.0 GOVERNANCE 

4.1.0
Organisational Risk Register 
C. Hamblyn presented the report, which provided the latest iteration of the Risk Register containing matters with a score of 15 or above which had been assigned to the Committee for scrutiny. 
N. Milligan referred to risk 5364 and advised that recent feedback from the Care Groups was that they were unable to backfill on a permanent basis for people who were leaving and could only backfill on a temporary basis or not at all and queried why this had not been addressed. 

In response, H. Daniel advised that there had been some issues in relation to health visiting in that nurses had left to undertake their training and then did not return to their posts, they were also trying to get some temporary neonatal nurses.  He added that the Children and Families Care Group were now overseeing the vacancies and it was under their remit to make those financial decisions. 
G. Padmore-Dix, in response, added that it was quite challenging particularly in terms of the school nurses when they leave to undertake their training, in that they very rarely return to that post. 

Resolution: The Committee reviewed the Risk Register and NOTED the report.

5.0 INSPIRING PEOPLE
5.1.0
EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION
5.1.1
Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2022-23


B. Screen presented the Annual Report for 2022-23. 

H. Daniel thanked B. Screen for the fresh approach he was taking recognising that they were a small team with a very big agenda. He advised that the Welsh Language Steering Group had good attendance from the Care Groups which was positive and added that Welsh Language and culture needs to be woven into everything they do so that patients feel they can access services in the language of their choice. 

M. Penny referred to the wards and the resources to support them with translation and queried the translation services they used as the number of times they have had to look at the quality of the translation in terms of spelling errors and whether they made use of technology on the wards for translation.


M. Hurley-Tyers responded that it was not a stand-alone silo with regard to Welsh but about other languages also and that they were discussing this with regard to how this would be included within the People Plan. 

L. Thomas commented that from her perspective as the Board Champion for Welsh the report was much improved on previous versions and she congratulated the team.  She added that it was worth reminding the Committee that there was still a long way to go when looking at the figures within the report and that having bespoke resources was really important.  She went on to add that if they want to move forward, they should visibly demonstrate some of the things that were important such as translation at meetings and her final point was that they need to consider the different translations between North and South Wales. 
K. Wright thanked B. Screen for the amount of work that he had put in over the last 12 months with a small team and in promoting the use of the Welsh Language via the Steering Group.  She added that the main driver for this was for the patients to have better communication for the best outcomes. 
H. Daniel referred to the point made by L. Thomas with regard to weaving Welsh Language into everything they do and suggested that they could consider having a report at the Board or Committee in Welsh with simultaneous translation.  He thanked K. Wright for her leadership on this and advised that they would give some thought to this and test some ideas out. 
D. Jouvenat commented that it was more about the hearts and mind arguments rather than legislation and she was very impressed with the report. 

Resolution: 
The Committee ENDORSED for BOARD APPROVAL
Action:
To test some ideas out in relation to using more Welsh Language at a Board or Committee meeting. 
5.2.0
Employee Relations (ER) Report


K. Wright presented the report that provided a formal update in respect of ongoing ER cases and trends within the Health Board. 

N. Millligan advised that she attends the Leadership Partnership Forums for the Care Groups where it was raised that it was difficult to get advice from the People Hub and that staff were unable to get through and were feeling vulnerable.  She added that there was clearly a problem with this in terms of supporting staff who were experiencing any issues within their workforce.


In response, H. Daniel advised that they were meeting about this later that day looking at timescales for cases as well and how quickly and effectively they were being dealt with and how well this was working.  He added that with regard to the Hub there had been turnover issues within the team and they had been migrated across to a different way of working.  They would take on board the feedback and look at this. 

R. Hughes advised that they were commencing work with the Children and Families Care Group with regard to fundamental changes made by the Nursing and Midwifery Council in relation to vetting.  He added that they were looking at the processes currently in place and would be meeting on a quarterly basis. 
K. Wright advised that she had noted the comments made and would incorporate them into the report for the next meeting. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 

5.3.0
Disclosure & Barring (DBS) Checks Assurance Report 

K. Wright presented the report that provided an update on the actions taken to date to try to improve the compliance of DBS checks. 
Karen expressed her thanks to A. Milligan, Graduate Trainee whose help and support had enabled them to move to phase 2. 

R. Hughes advised that Healthcare Inspectorate Wales (HIW) had raised concerns in relation to DBS checks under the safeguarding umbrella in Bridgend which had triggered a joint approach around stronger mechanisms to be put in place with regard to safeguarding.

N. Milligan referred to the lack of responses and whether new starters think that the email was a scam and that it might be worth putting out some communications to reinforce that the email is genuine.  K. Wright advised that they had put out some communications in June, however, it would be a good reminder to do this again.  

H. Daniel advised that they had robust DBS systems in place for new starters and an action plan following the HIW report.  He added that the risk was that some staff had not had a DBS for some time, the risk was low however, it only needs one person and he referred to the case in Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board. His concern was that it was four years on from the Bridgend transfer and there were still high numbers which were about 61 a month.  They would review this in September and see if this was working or not and if staff were ignoring the communications, they would need to step that up with a more directional approach.  

J. Denley, in response, advised that the Operational teams would be able to help with this and offered their support. 

N. Milligan, in response to J. Denley point advised that the support would be helpful but they did also need to discuss with managers how they could support them and provide them with the right support. 
D. Jouvenat thanked the team for the improvements made to date and that the risks outlined within the report should be escalated to the Board via the Committee Highlight Report. 
Resolution: The Committee:

· NOTED the content of the report and the actions taken to date to try to improve the compliance of DBS checks among those employees who historically do not have this information in their ESR record.   
· NOTED the Health has robust processes in place to ensure new employees that require a DBS check have this evidence on their ESR record. 
5.4.0
Workforce Metrics Report

N. Price presented the report which provided the Committee with the key workforce metrics for the period: with historic trends shown as appropriate. 

N. Milligan advised that it was pleasing to see the increase with regard to the return to work figures.  However, they were still taking 9 days to shortlist and constantly failing to hit the 3 day target.  N. Price advised that they would need to do some targetted work in this area and that capacity was an issue. 
N. Milligan referred to retention and the fact that the rates had increased.  She advised that this was an area of importance and required some work at pace. 

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 

6.0. SUSTAINING OUR FUTURE

6.1.0
Strategic Workforce Planning and Retention
Strategic Workforce Planning

N. Price provided a presentation to the Committee on the work with KPMG. 

N. Milligan advised that the presentation outlined the work that KPMG had undertaken, however, it would be good to see the ‘so what’s’ and what the results would be coming out of that work and what they were going to do.   N. Price responded by advising that they were looking at the establishment controls, alongside the clinical development plan with regard to the medium and long term plans. 

L. Thomas commented that she was familiar with KPMG from previous work they had undertaken elsewhere.  She advised that the point made by N. Milligan about what they were going to do next from an implementation perspective was important and another example of that they need to be pushing and implementing the clinical services strategy and whether there was some work for the Communications team to undertake on this.  She added that there was a question for them at Board level on how they were going to manage future vision with the current financial situation
H. Daniel referred to N. Milligan’s point on the ‘so what’s’ and advised that they were developing a plan and they had a more structured process with regard to educational commissioning. He advised that they had now recruited a Head of Workforce Planning who would be a great resource within this space.  The key thing would be to take this from abstract and to make it real for the Care Groups on the ground. 
Retention

N. Price & Becky Gammon provided a presentation on Retention. 

H.  Daniel advised the Committee that the response rates were showing an improvement and were currently at 10%, whereas previously they were at 0%.  He added that there was still work to be done to continue with those improvements. 
N. Milligan referred to slide 12 and commented that it was disappointing that the percentage of staff feeling valued by their organisation was low. 
L. Thomas questioned that rather than having exit interviews or in additional exit interview that they should be having joining interviews to establish what aspirations staff have from a career perspective to join the Health Board from the beginning.  She also referred life changes and between 25 and 35 when people were looking to start a family and whether they were offering flexible working.  N. Price advised that they were looking at a wider Health Education and Improvement Wales (HEIW) discussion on ‘staying’ and not waiting for someone to resign. 
N. Milligan referred to the difficulties that students experience when trying to join the staff bank.  N. Price advised that they had developed an improvement plan and they could bring something back to the Committee on progress. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the presentations on Strategic Workforce   Planning and Retention.  

6.2.0

Development of the Inspiring People Plan – Progress Report

H. Watkins presented the report that outlined the development timeline of the Inspiring People Plan and the actions required to achieve the Inspiring People goal as part of the CTM 2030 Strategy.
H. Daniel advised that they had discussions at the Inspiring People Board about pledges and how they turn this into something where they could improve work for staff and would be testing this out working with G. Padmore-Dix and the team. 
Resolution: The Committee ENDORSED the planning approach for the development of the Inspiring People Plan. 
6.3.0

Implementation of the Speaking Up Safely (SUS) Framework 

M. Hurley-Tyers presented the report that provided an update on the progress being made by the SUSWG to plan and implement the SUS framework within the Health Board. 


H. Daniel referred to the Welsh Government work with Cardiff University on a more blended model in comparison to the Guardian model which really did not work that well due to single points of failure.   He advised that the framework was due to be launched within the next two months.  

L. Thomas referred to ‘Freedom to Speak Up Guardians’ that work really well and offers good career opportunities for people.  They also provide psychological safety and trust. 
Resolution:
The Committee NOTED the report and the progress made. 
6.4.0
Staff Recognition Update on Progress 


S. Blackburn provided a presentation to the Committee in relation to the Staff Recognition programme. 


N. Milligan commented that she appreciated that they were a very small team, however, they had been talking about this for a very long time and the presentation on recruitment had showed that 25% of staff had left the organisation.  She advised that previously they would hold an event where staff had coffee with the Chief Executive and were presented with a certificate which they really valued as it was a way of saying ‘thank you’.  She wondered why they were not looking to do something simple like that rather than a change in branding.  

S. Blackburn advised that with regard to the timelines these were set for the award scheme and not for recognition.  With regard to recognition, he added that he did take the points made and that there was something about getting a balance on this and not create too long a delay and he would take this away and review.

D. Jouvenat referred to the long service awards and suggested that staff could be provided with a badge or special lanyard for example that they would be proud to wear.  She added that she agreed with the point made by N. Milligan and also with regard to an award ceremony the categories had to be right and they need to consider carefully what categories to use.  She advised that she had attended the quality and improvement session recently where staff were very proud to see their posters displayed. 
Resolution:
The Committee NOTED the presentation. 
7.0. OTHER MATTERS 

7.1.0

HIGHLIGHT REPORT TO BOARD 
Resolution: The Committee AGREED that the report would be prepared by the 

Governance Team following the meeting. Escalate DBs Checks to Board. 
7.2.0

FORWARD WORK PLAN 

The Chair asked Members of the Committee if they had any items that they would like to include for future meetings to let the Corporate Governance Team know.  Couple of topics for the Forward Plan from today. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Forward Work Plan 
7.3.0

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 


There was none. 

7.4.0
HOW DID WE DO TODAY?


Members of the Committee felt that the session had been uplifting and inspiring and suggested it be repeated at a future Board Development Session.

Members considered that it had been an excellent meeting which had covered a lot of work that needed to be recognised. 


Members agreed that the Senior Communications Officer should be added to the terms of reference due to the number of discussions held in relation to communication with staff.  C. Hamblyn advised that the Governance Team would amend the terms of reference to reflect this. 


The Chair advised that if anyone had any comments to feedback, they could do that outside of the meeting if they so wished. 
Resolution:
The Committee AGREED to add the Senior Communications Officer to the terms of reference as a member of the Committee. 


7.5.0
CLOSE OF THE MEETING – DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
The next full meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held on the 8th November 2023.
PAGE  
	‘Confirmed’ Minutes People & Culture Committee 

9.8.2023                                     
	Page 1 of 12
	Planning, Performance & Finance Committee          

8th November 2023



